
 

 

Agenda Item A.1 
CPMS CONSENT CALENDAR 

Meeting Date: January 16, 2020 
____________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Peter Imhof, Planning and Environmental Director 
 Charlie Ebeling, Public Works Director  
 
CONTACT: Lisa Prasse, Current Planning Manager  
 James Campero, Deputy Public Works Director  
 
SUBJECT: Development of Vehicle Miles Traveled California Environmental Quality 

Act Thresholds 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
A. Authorize the City Manager to execute a Professional Services Agreement with GHD 

to develop Vehicles Miles Traveled California Environmental Quality Act Thresholds 
in the amount not to exceed $159,478 with the term ending September 1, 2020; 
 

B. Authorize an additional appropriation of $180,478 from General Fund Unassigned 
Fund Balance to the Current Planning program accounts as listed in the Fiscal Impact 
section. 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
In 2013, the State of California adopted Senate Bill 743 which changed the focus of 
transportation impact analysis in the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) from 
measuring traffic congestion impacts to drivers to measuring the impact of driving as the 
environmental impact.  The change is being made by replacing the Level of Service (LOS) 
metric with a Vehicles Miles Traveled (VMT) metric. The VMT metric focuses on the 
amount and distance of VMT attributable to a project.  This paradigm shift in transportation 
impact focus will better align impact analysis and mitigation outcomes with the State’s 
goals to reduce greenhouse gas emissions, encourage infill development, and improve 
public health through more active transportation.  Based on the extensive statewide input 
received on this change, it has taken several years for the Governor’s Office of Planning 
and Research to revise the CEQA Guidelines to reflect the requirements of SB 743. The 
Governor’s Office of Planning and Research has determined that all jurisdictions are 
required to establish and use the VMT metric for CEQA analysis by July 1, 2020.   
 
VMT is calculated by multiplying the number of vehicle trips that a proposed development 
will generate by the estimated number of miles driven per trip.  LOS impacts were typically 
offset by increasing roadway capacity (i.e., widening roads) as a mitigation measure to 
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increase vehicular throughput. Under the new metric, projects that are expected to result 
in significant increases in VMT will be able to mitigate their impacts through alternative 
measures such as car-sharing services, unbundled parking, improved transit, and 
enhanced pedestrian and bicycle infrastructure.   
 
The State of California has made its own recommendation for the CEQA impact threshold 
at 15% below the existing VMT per capita of the region. Section 15064.3(b)(1) of the 
CEQA Guidelines provides further guidance regarding establishing CEQA thresholds as 
follows:  
 

Vehicle miles traveled exceeding an applicable threshold of significance 
may indicate a significant impact.  Generally, projects within one-half mile 
of either an existing major transit stop or a stop along an existing high- 
quality transit corridor should be presumed to cause a less than significant 
transportation impact.  Projects that decrease vehicle miles traveled in the 
project area compared to existing conditions should be presumed to have 
a less than significant transportation impact.  

 
Jurisdictions are allowed to continue to use the LOS metric as a component of project 
analysis, but not for environmental analysis purposes.  As the City’s Circulation Element 
of the General Plan/Coastal Land Use Plan uses the LOS metric, LOS will continue to be 
used when making consistency findings.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The development and implementation of VMT CEQA thresholds is a coordinated effort 
between the staffs of the Public Works and Planning and Environmental Review 
Departments. On October 22, 2019, the Planning and Environmental Review Department 
released a Request for Proposal to prepare VMT CEQA Thresholds in accordance with 
Senate Bill 743. The City received three responses to this request.  All of the responses 
were in excess of the $30,000 placeholder amount that Planning and Environmental 
Review Department included in this Fiscal Year’s budget.  
 
After evaluating the proposals and interviewing the firm that had the most comprehensive 
understanding of the travel patterns affecting Goleta, the most responsiveness to the 
Request for Proposal, and the best qualifications of the team, staff recommends the firm 
of GHD with Jim Damkowitch as the Project Manager.  Mr. Damkowitch has provided the 
City with traffic modeling support since 2005 and is very familiar with the scope of the 
traffic generators and patterns that affect Goleta including traffic contributions from the 
City of Santa Barbara, the University of California at Santa Barbara, and the County.  In 
addition to GHD, the team includes Convergence Planning (to assist with modeling and 
development of interactive tools) and Rincon Consultants (to provide CEQA process 
support).  There is much work to do be done in a limited timeframe in order to meet the 
fast approaching deadline. The proposed primary tasks to accomplish the project include:  
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1. Development/selection of the appropriate Methodology to establish a VMT 
baseline. GHD will start with both the City’s existing Travel Model and SBCAG 
Model;  

2. Development of VMT Thresholds and Screening Criteria; 
3. Development of Project-Level VMT Analysis Tool; 
4. Goleta Model Review/Update based on the established thresholds;   
5. Development of Project-Level VMT Mitigation Measures; 
6. Development of Safety Thresholds, Evaluation of Impacts, and Mitigation; and  
7. Staff training/development of Users-Manual for City staff and the public.    

 
The attached contract outlines the tasks, the deliverables, and the associated quick 
schedule in order to meet the July 1, 2020 deadline, including hearings with the Planning 
Commission and City Council.  
 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 
 
As part of the FY 19/20 budget process, staff had requested $30,000 as a placeholder for 
the VMT project. As noted above, additional funds are needed to accomplish this project. 
An additional appropriation of $180,478 ($129,478 for GHD contract and $51,000 for 
three citywide mailed notices) from the General Fund unassigned fund balance is 
requested.  Approximately $6.7 million is available in General Fund unassigned fund 
balance. The current budget with recommended appropriations is shown in the following 
table.   
 

VMT CEQA Threshold, FY19/20 

Fund Type Account Existing 
Allocation 

Additional 
Appropriation 

Requested 

Amended 
Available 
Budget 

General 
Fund  

101-5-
4100-500  

$30,000 $129,478 $159,478 

General 
Fund 

101-5-
4100-116 

--- $51,000 
 

$51,000 

Total  $30,000 $180,478 $210,478 

 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
 
Direct staff to enter into negotiations with one of the other respondents to the RFP or re-
release the RFP to seek other bidders.  
 
Reviewed By: Legal Review By: Approved By: 
 
 
___________________ ___________________ _________________     
Kristine Schmidt  Michael Jenkins Michelle Greene 
Assistant City Manager City Attorney          City Manager 

3



 Meeting Date:  January 16, 2020 

 

Page 4 of 4 

ATTACHMENT: 
 
 
1. Professional Services Agreement 20 – XXX with GHD  
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